
City of Excelsior 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

Minutes 
Tuesday, July 20, 2010 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 
Chair Sanders called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.  

 
Commissioner Present:   Sanders, Barnard, Mueller, Meyer, Roden 
 

Also Present:    City Planner Fuchs, Planning Consultant Richards 
 

Chair Sanders noted that Commissioner Elise Howell had submitted her 
resignation, and that Commissioner Dick Reid had been removed by the City 
Council for non-attendance at meetings.  

  
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a. Heritage Preservation Commission Meeting of June 22, 2010 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Mueller, seconded by Commissioner Meyer, 
to approve the minutes as written.  Approved unanimously.  

 
3.   CITIZEN REPORTS or COMMENTS 

 
Sanders noted that as there were several people present who would like to 
speak to specific agenda items, there would be time during the discussion of 

those agenda items for citizens to comment.  
  

It was moved by Commissioner Roden, seconded by Commissioner Meyer, to 
delay any Citizen Reports or Comments to their respective items.  Approved 
unanimously. 

 
4. MISCELLANEOUS/COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS 

 
a. Recent City Council Actions 
 

City Planner Fuchs gave an update on the 2010-2011 pavement program.  
He noted that the request from Xterra to place a communications tower on 

the City’s water tower had been withdrawn.  The City is beginning 
2011budget considerations.  He reported that there has been no decision on 
the purchase of the Lyman Lumber property following the Hennepin County 

purchase of land for a new library.  
 

Commissioner Barnard inquired about the new construction on Second Street 
between Jake O’Connors and Paris Tailors.  Fuchs said that the construction  
 

 



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 2 

 
4. MISCELLANEOUS/COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS 

 
b. Recent City Council Actions – (Continued) 

 

is a continuation of the 200 Water Street Project, which was approved by the 
HPC in October of 2006.  

 
Fuchs distributed information about a projecting sign that had been 
administratively approved for 236 Second Street. 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Site Alteration Permit for Signage at 368 George St. -  Betsy Hanna, Cameo 

Tesserae Salon 
 

The owner had planned to be in attendance, but was not yet present.  It was 

moved by Commissioner Roden, seconded by Commissioner Meyer, to 
continue this agenda item to the end of New Business.  Approved 

unanimously. 
   
b. Site Alteration Permit for Signage at 231 Water St. - Renewable Energy SD 

 
Mr. Schmidt was not available to attend the meeting, and had not submitted 

a complete application.  Fuchs spoke with the applicant yesterday, but a 
complete application had not been received.  
 

It was moved by Commissioner Meyer, seconded by Commissioner Roden to 
continue this item to the next meeting.  Approved unanimously.  

 
c.  State Historic Preservation Conference 
 

Sanders asked if anyone was interested in attending this year’s Preservation 
Conference in Winona.  She noted that the City would provide two 

scholarships, and would ask about additional funds if more than two people 
where interested in going.  

 

Roden said he would like to go depending on his work schedule.  Mueller 
stated that she doesn’t know if she’ll be able to go.  Meyers, Barnard, and 

Sanders said they would like to attend.   



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 3 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
d. Continuation of Site Alteration Permit for Signage at 368 George St. -  Betsy 

Hanna, Cameo Tesserae Salon 

 
The owner was still not in attendance. Sanders noted that the sign complied 

with the ordinance and sign standards. It is made of wooden resin and it is in 
the same location as the existing sign.  
 

It was moved by Commissioner Roden, seconded by Commissioner Mueller to 
approve the Site Alteration Permit for signage as proposed.  Approved 

unanimously. 
 

6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a. Site Alteration Permit for New Building at 10 Water Street--Excelsior Hotel 

Neil Weber, Weber Architects and Planners 
 

Neil Weber of Weber Architects and Planners, representing the developer 
Charlie James, was present to answer issues raised at the last meeting about 
the Excelsior Hotel proposal. 

 
Sanders noted that the issues were height, cast stone, cupola design, and 

more information on windows and doors, materials presented on a 
representative portion of the facade, sidewalk width, and specific information 
on the materials used.  

 
Weber stated that the field stone would be as used by the City in The 

Commons area.  He presented a window section, and stated that he felt 
adequate information about windows and doors was included in the packet.  
Weber stated that no decision had been made on the brick.  Once approval 

had been granted to begin the project, he could build sample walls to better 
evaluate brick and mortar colors.  Weber asked for a range of brick to be 

approved and then he would come back to the HPC in the future with a final 
selection.  Weber asked for approval of  3 brick samples, Hansom “Old 
Williamsburg,” Lee Brick, “#183 Jefferson blend,” and Boral “Woodward 

Blend.”  
 

Roden asked about the building height and if the elevation of 35’ noted on 
the drawings was misleading.  Weber replied that the 35’ height was from 
Water Street and that the fourth story would not been seen from Lake Street 

is misleading.  Roden stated that the fourth story would be visible from Lake 
Street and that the 35’ height was misleading.  

 
Barnard stated that the 35’ height limit was a zoning issue, and the HPC was 
not considering a height limit for variance.  The HPC is to consider the mass 

and scale in proportion to other buildings in the downtown historic district.  
 



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 4 

 
 

6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a. Site Alteration Permit for New Building at 10 Water Street--Excelsior Hotel 

Neil Weber, Weber Architects and Planners – (Continued) 
 

Roden stated that the 35’ height limit was applicable in evaluating the mass 
and scale of the building, and no other building on Water Street was that tall.  
 

Mueller stated that she also felt that the 35’ height limit was applicable in 
evaluating mass and scale.  

 
Roden read a prepared statement detailing the history of his life and work in 

Excelsior, and his opposition to the hotel project based upon its height.  He 
stated that the proposed hotel was huge, and was not in line with the rest of 
the historic district, that the HPC was responsible for the compatibility of this 

building with others in the historic district.  The height of the building was far 
taller than any other building in the historic district.  He stated the mass and 

scale were totally out of sync with other buildings in the historic district and 
he would not support it.  He stated that the HPC should not spend any time 
looking at the plans, that the applicant needed to respect Excelsior and bring 

back plans that fit Excelsior.  
 

Commissioner Roden moved, Commissioner Meyer seconded, to deny the 
Site Alteration Permit and to ask the applicant to bring plans that meet the 
35’ height restriction.  

 
Chair Sanders opened the floor for discussion.  

 
Meyer read a prepared statement in which he quoted statements Mr. Weber 
had made to local newspapers.  The statements were about the reasons Mr. 

Weber thought the hotel should be granted a variance from the height 
restriction.  Meyer thought the variance would set a dangerous precedent for 

Excelsior, and we should think about future development, for example, at the 
corner of Third and Water Street.  Meyer also stated that stepping back the 
building while exceeding the height limit was an illusion.  

 
Meyer stated the architect had said a scale model of the building was not as 

accurate a representation as the drawings, a position Meyer disagreed with. 
Meyer also disagreed with published statements by the architect that there 
was historic precedent for a hotel due to the multiple hotels in the area in the 

past.  Meyer stated that this was over 100 years ago, and transportation had 
since changed.  

 
Meyer also stated that the possibility of using the hotel as condos was not 
compatible with the zoning of the land, that the proposed project was out of  

 
 



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 5 

 
6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Site Alteration Permit for New Building at 10 Water Street--Excelsior Hotel 

Neil Weber, Weber Architects and Planners – (Continued) 

 
scale according to the Excelsior Comprehensive Plan, and that he hoped 

there was a business plan and feasibility study for the project to prove that it 
was sustainable year round.  Meyer stated he could not support the project 
based upon its mass and scale.  

 
Mueller stated she had lived in Excelsior since 1967 and had seen a series of 

developments proposed that the community did not support. She felt a 
development of this size was not appropriate for Excelsior and would not 

support the project.  
 
Monica Frederick, 603 Lake Street, Excelsior, stated that she supported the 

plan for the building.  She thought every criteria was met by the architect 
and the owner, was pleased with the design, which she stated was attractive. 

She thought the proposed project was well done and supports it.  
 
Scott McGinnis, 2605 Christian Parkway, Chaska, stated that he had looked 

at the project from the point of view of his profession as a professional 
historian.  He stated that the design of the building was appealing and the 

location was historically appropriate for a hotel; however, there were step 
backs in the facade of the proposed building, which was not a feature seen 
on other buildings in the historic district.  

 
Mr. McGinnis stated that while a hotel was a historically appropriate land use 

for the area, there had not been a hotel on Water Street during the period of 
significance.  He also stated there is no field stone on Water Street so that 
proposed material is not compatible with the downtown business district.  He 

stated that talk of future conversion of retail to residential was not 
compatible with the downtown zoning.  

 
Linda Murrell, Executive Director of the South Lake Excelsior Chamber of 
Commerce, said that members of the South Lake Excelsior Chamber of 

Commerce has discussed the hotel and while there had not been any poll or 
survey of the members they generally liked the concept.  She asked the HPC 

not to shut down the project immediately, but continue the discussion and 
work to come to an agreement on the building size.  
 

Barnard said she had other concerns about the building such as the level of 
detail, and felt that it might be more elaborate than other buildings in the 

historic district, but that it was difficult to tell from the information provided. 
There were also concerns about materials that the HPC had asked the 
architect to provide, and it would be detrimental to this project and to future 

projects if they have not had a discussion about those issues.  Barnard stated 
 



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 6 

 
6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Site Alteration Permit for New Building at 10 Water Street--Excelsior Hotel 

Neil Weber, Weber Architects and Planners – (Continued) 

 
that she disagreed with denying the Site Alteration Permit based on only one 

metric of mass and scale, the height restriction was in the zoning ordinance.  
 
The motion to deny the SAP was approved, with Commissioners Mueller, 

Meyer, Roden and Chair Sanders voting for the motion, and Commissioner 
Barnard voting against the motion.   

 
The discussion with the architect continued with the question about whether 

or not a building that filled the entire buildable envelope allowed by the 
zoning code would meet mass and scale requirements.  Mr Weber stated that 
they could submit a building configured like that, and asked if the HPC would 

then have to approve it, as it would then meet the mass and scale 
requirement.  Sanders stated that just because something was allowed 

within the zoning code does not necessarily mean that it exhibits appropriate 
mass and scale, and could be denied on that basis even if it is allowed by the 
zoning code.  

 
Planning Consultant Richards talked about some statistics that Chair Sanders 

had asked him to prepare, comparing the percentage of lot coverage of the 
proposed hotel project with other buildings in Excelsior.  Barnard noted that 
mere lot coverage was not a good way to judge mass and scale, as a very 

narrow, very tall building that was built right at the sidewalk line would be 
visually more massive than a two story building that covered the entire lot, 

and yet have less lot coverage.  
 
Mr. McGinnis spoke again, stating that the historic district was an overlay of 

the zoning code, and therefore zoning restrictions should be considered when 
evaluating buildings in the historic district.  He also reiterated that there had 

been hotels in the area in the past, and this pattern of use should be 
considered when evaluating a proposed project in the historic district. 
Sanders noted that while a pattern of use was often a consideration in 

broader application of historic preservation, the City’s ordinance did not 
direct the HPC to consider patterns of use when evaluating a Site Alteration 

Permit.  
 
Roden stated that a model was needed.  Weber agreed.  

 
Sanders then stopped discussion, noting that the motion had passed and 

there were still agenda items for the Commission to consider.  
 
The HPC will approve the Decision and Order for denying the Site Alteration 

Permit at their meeting on August 17, 2010.  
 



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 7 

 
6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
b. Demolition By Neglect Ordinance 
 

Barnard reported that a draft of the proposed Ordinance was currently with 
the City Attorney and we were awaiting his comments.  

 
Moved by Commissioner Mueller, seconded by Commissioner Meyer to 
continue this item until the next meeting. Approved unanimously.  

 
c. Site Alteration Permit for Signage at 231 Water St. - Renewable Energy SD 

 
In light of a complete application package for this project just received by 

Fuchs, this item was brought back into discussion.  
 

Fuchs noted that the sign had already been placed and was a full-color 

photographic sign that obscured the entire glass area of the door.  The sign 
does meet the size requirement per the sign ordinance.  

  
Barnard stated that the sign is a very contemporary sign, not in character 
with the type of sign that would have been on the buildings during their 

period of significance.  The buildings would have had wall signs, signs 
hanging from the walls, or signs etched or painted on the clear glass of the 

door.  A full glass-obscuring photographic sign on the door was not in 
character with other current signage in the downtown historic district or signs 
that would have existed in the past.  

 
Commissioner Meyer moved, Commissioner Roden seconded, to deny the 

Site Alteration Permit for signage at 231 Water St. Approved unanimously.  
 
7. Communications and Reports 

 
a. 2010 goals and objectives 

 
Barnard noted that one of the Commission’s goals is to have continuing 
education for its members.  She noted that last year’s Preservation 

Convention had very good information on the roles and duties of the HPC and 
she urged members to attend this year’s Convention for more continuing 

education.  
 
8.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Meyer, seconded by Commissioner Roden, to 

adjourn.  Approved unanimously.  Adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 



Minutes 
Heritage Preservation Commission 

July 20, 2010 
Page 8 

 
 

Betsy Barnard 
Secretary 
 


